Bank to Toronto — Saskatchewan Branches: 1906-1955 Version 8

The Bank of Toronto was established in Toronto, Ontario in 1855. The Western branches were reportedly
directed from the Winnipeg office. The Bank of Toronto and the Dominion Bank (est. in 1871 in Toronto)
merged in 1955 to form the Toronto-Dominion Bank, also now referred to as the TD Bank Group or TD Canada
Trust.

In 1906 the Bank of Toronto opened the first three of about 30 Saskatchewan branches, starting in Yorkton
(May __, 1906), then at Wolseley (July 20), and the third at Langenburg (Sept. 21). [Source: letter from
Toronto-Dominion Bank Archives to Cecil Tannahill, 4 Nov. 1981; on file at the Provincial Archives of
Saskatchewan; R-925.1 — Cecil Tannahill]



On August 6, 1919, the construction publication Contract Record reported the following on p. 45:

Saskatchewan, Province of

Thirteen buildings, $111,000, for Bank
of Toronto, Toronto: General contrac-
tor, Jas. McDiarmid Co., Ltd, 2nd floor,
Nokomis  Bldg,y Winnipeg.  Plumbing
and heating will be let.

The Bank of Toronto constructed many of its buildings following a standard design, as was common practice
then for all banks and remains so today, as part of establishing a highly visible corporate image for the public.
In Saskatchewan, The Bank of Toronto buildings were primarily wooden structures; however a few brick
buildings were erected as well. How it was decided which community would receive the standard wooden
design, and which the more elaborate brick structures has not yet been determined; nor has the names of any
architects or contractors associated with the construction, save for the 13 unidentified buildings mention in the
above Contract Record notice.

In this report, the primary source for data relating to the Bank of Toronto is the annual banking section of the
Canadian Almanac (see sample below). From 1907 until 1919 the Almanac provided locational listings of all
the banks then operated by the Bank of Toronto, and some other banks. Before and after that date research into
individual banks and communities is a much more cumbersome process.

106 ADVERTISEMENTS,

IMPERIAL BANK OF CAN

Establishod 1675 ¥
Capital Authorized, $10,000,000.00 _ Capital Paid-Up, $7.06

Fund, $7,000,000.00
P olnmn
PELEG HOWLA
How, Hootll X W,
SR, A M M&wn&ﬁ.‘l‘:“ “‘:::?'xnnkmnwunl Quetc. }t
JON. W, I HANNA SONN NOLTHWAY.
HEAD OFFICE e TORDNTO
E. MAY, Genera! Mavager W. MOFFAT, Aut,
Branches
Torootle Cottam 1 m:::-“ %m“um’
e | B | R | e

Footal K N ¥
P EEe e | Emm | pmiEi
1 Fait Loaton Nowmackel
Hamilton Marstville Miawa
! Eaat Earrow Naahville algrave
i 3
ngermoll Niagara Falls
Province of Qu-b.e

Quabee
Province of Manitoba
m'h Pralria I et Bt

ce of
Balpoale Fandahar

e
FnQuA e " Bittetord Roshers  Wynyand

. Drafus on NEW YOKK and STERLING °§x°ﬂm°.
Savings Bank Dept:-DEPOSITS recelved and Intesest
Muaicipal and other Boady and Dobsatures Bsaght aad Sold. MP‘

INCORPORATED 1855
HEAD OFFICE - TORONT!
Capital, $5,000,000 Rese
BRANCHES e

ONTARIO | Ganssoque Fort 3
Torsata (1 Biranches)| Huwings. Pomten
Albandnle TR ook B Cunaiin
] coon Hbelbane
e Sarwon Stayner
Brantion
Hrockvil L nm mh“#

Kronte London (4 Branches)

Rarfent if""""" W,

weilinal (Tiymete oAb
:'.:'ﬂl {(mna Well

ol "
o L?"r': Nowsarket Wyoming

walar Ol Hprings
Callingweod gy
:.;ow::‘ Ciity ;xu'."." QUEBEC
Ceeence farry Bownd
Dlorcat Fooetang Mosteral (5 Jlranclies)
Fimvade P . Point Bt Charlre

on Petrofin o
Gadt Torcapior Souh ot Ay

BANKERS i~ Losdew, England—The Lond,
VD New \’orh-—‘fnhonu Bask of (‘mun"« (8 Natiooa! Bank,
In Savings Dmr:mnnl—lu«lr‘lﬂu vaid o all halisces  Small uvum wane received on deposite
Special and prompt attenlion given 10 the ool of
DIRECTORS

Ww.o HAM
WILLA O B SCDORAED:
BRIG.-GEN. " 5 MEIGHEN oL xko'-u" ARY

3. B. LAME, Superiatendent of Hramihes 0 CMrol Manager. L CNf Inspector.




Alternate options for locating Saskatchewan branches are the Bank’s annual reports, which provide listings such
as this one for 1936.

SASKATCHEWAN
Assiniboia S M. L. Magee, Manager.
Bredenbury « « = J E Conn, -
Colonsay . : : ) . H. R. Chapin, “
Fairlight N ’ : . . J. M. Reinheimer, .
Glenavon e« +« e =« o P R Fleming, “
Glidden . . . . (Sub to Madison) “
Gravelbourg . o H L. Knight, S
Hodgeville . ‘ . F. J. Goldsmith, B
Kennedy . X ! . C. E. Beirnes, .
Kipling . . Jas, Milmine, "
Kyle ; . B. Collins, ¥
Lafleche : c . M. C. Manhard, -
Langenburg ., . = e . N. Toland, .
Madison . g . . 0. C. Comwell, o
Mazenod " M E Ken; =
Meyronne . . . R. H. Wilson, o
Montmartre . ’ . E. B. Little, ks
Neilburg . . : C. L. Thompson, ¢
Preeceville . . . G. Kay, “
Regina ~ : > : . F. C. Burnet, g
Rosetown .. . G A Hetherington, *
Smiley . . - ~ J. B. Simpson, o
Vanguard 5 oA F. O. Johnston, “*
Welwyn . . G. R, Tucker, e
Wolseley ¥ = > . W, H, Hambly, ¢
Yorkton . « « « W.] Miller, “

The two tables on the following pages show a chronological listing and later an alphabetical listing. The latter
also includes images where available from local histories, archives, and Google Street View.



Canadian Almanac (Provincial Archives of Saskatchewan) — Chronological Branch Listing

Year page Branch photo Photo Source Other Source Comments
opened
1906 N/A No entries — Table Listing Start in
1907
1907 75 Langenburg T-D Archives, 4 Opened: Sept. 21
Nov. 1981
75 Quill Lake Opened: ?; Closed c.1909
75 Wolseley T-D Archives, 4 Opened: July 20
Nov. 1981
75 Yorkton T-D Archives, 4 Opened: May____
Nov. 1981
1908 63 N/A No new entries
1909 61 Quill Lake No Listing; Closed: ¢.1909
1910 61 Elstow Opened: ? Closed: ¢.1915
61 Kennedy Opened: 1909; Closed: 1937
1911 61 Bredenbury Opened: ?
61 Churchbridge Opened: ? Closed: ¢.1915
61 Glenavon Opened: ?
61 Kipling Opened: ?
61 Montmartre Opened: ?
61 Vibank Opened: ?
1912 61 Churchbridge Missed in listing
61 Pelly Opened:
61 Preeceville Opened: ?
61 Stenen Opened: ?
1913 110 Assiniboia Opened: ?
110 Colonsay Opened: ?
110 Gravelbourg Opened: ?
110 Lafleche Opened: ?
110 Lemberg Opened: ? Closed: ¢.1914
110 Mortlach Opened: ?
110 Odessa No Listing; Closed: c.1914
110 Springside Opened: ? Closed: c.1914
110 Summerberry Opened: ? Closed: c.1914
1914 116 Lemberg No Listing; Closed: c.1914
116 Meyronne Opened: ?
116 Odessa No Listing; Closed: c.1914
116 Springside No Listing; Closed: c.1914
116 Summerberry No Listing; Closed: c.1914
1915 104 Churchbridge No Listing; Closed: ¢.1915
104 Elstow No Listing; Closed: ¢.1915
104 Mazenod Opened: ?
104 Woodrow Opened: ? Closed: c.1917
1916 106 N/A No new entries
1917 106 Chaplin Opened: ?
106 Woodrow No Listing; Closed: c.1917
1918 112 Madison Opened: ?
1919 112 St. Boswells Opened: ?
19 _? | N/A Vanguard Opened; ?
1920 N/A No Further Table Listings




Alphabetical Listing of Bank of Toronto Branches in Saskatchewan: 1906-1955

Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Arran

c.1921-
1922

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Arran History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838

Assiniboia # 1

Jan. 9,
1913

Photo: Provincial Archives of Saskatchewan
(PAS) R-A 145; no local history at PAS.

Probably demolished.

TD Bank Group Archives:

#7032 ASSINIBOIA, SASKATCHEWAN
300 Centre Street

® Opened January 9, 1913 as a Bank of
Toronto

e December 5, 1913 new premises

Assiniboia # 2

1919

1982

Architect: Northwood & Carey, Winnipeg (R.
Hill: BDAC - 1919)

Faced with T.P. Moka bricks from Claybank,
Sask.

Historic Photo - top: Prairie Towns website
Historic Photo - bottom: Courtesy of TD
Bank Group Archives

Colour Google photo below: July 2013

Identical to bank at Vanguard; now in use as a
business office. It is also similar to the wood
frame banks at Chaplin and Woodrow.

TD Bank Group Archives Note:

¢ 1919 new premises at 200 Centre Street
e March 23, 1982 relocated into new
premises from 200 Centre Street




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Bateman

c.1921-
1922

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Bateman History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838

Bredenbury # 1

1911

c.1915

Bredenbury History (schools): no relevant
information [PAS: R-E981]

Photo - Bredenbury History:”Memory Lane”,
p. 13

TD Bank Group Archives Note:

Closed October 18th, 1990 and business
moved to Yorkton branch at 36 Broadway
East.

Bredenbury # 2

c.1915

Oct. 18,
1990

PAS photo: Accession: 2010-211 - Heritage
Branch Slide Collection — Korvemaker — 23
May 1995

Bredenbury History (schools): no relevant
information [PAS: R-E981]

TD Bank Group Archives Note:

Closed October 18th, 1990 and business
moved to Yorkton branch at 36 Broadway
East.

Chaplin

1917

Designated as a Municipal Heritage Property
—Feb. 11, 1981 —the first MHP designation in
Sask.

B/W Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Colour Photo by Frank Korvemaker, 29 July
2015.

Chaplin History:
This bank is identical to the one erected at

Woodrow; and similar to the brick banks at
Assiniboia and Vanguard.




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Churchbridge

1911

c.1915

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Churchbridge History: no information
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838

Clapton

c.1921-
1922

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Clapton History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838

Colonsay # 1

1910

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Colonsay History: p. 29; opened c.1910

Photo: None at PAS

TD Bank Group Archives Note:

Found an article citing 1910 as the date of
BT's first branch in Colonsay.

Second premises opened for business on
September 12, 1966.

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838

Colonsay # 2

1966

By 2013

Image

Not Yet

Located

Photo: None at PAS
closed by 2013
TD Bank Group Archives Note:

Second premises opened for business on
September 12, 1966.




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Elstow

1910

c.1915

Photo possibly of the Bank of Toronto: P. 10
& 11

Elstow history: p. 10 “The Bank of Toronto
closed its doors in 1914. In about 1919 the
Bank of Commerce occupied the same
building [SEE: photo at left] . ... When the
banking services were discontinued, the
bank, which was made of bricks, was taken
down piece by piece..... and was
reconstructed in Vonda, where it is still in
use.” No evidence of this building in Vonda on
Google Street View.

Fairlight

Pre-1936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Fairlight History:

Photo: None at PAS

Glenavon #1

1909-
1910

1913

Photo - Glenavon History: p. 26; also photos
and information; p. 27, 29 & others. [PAS-R-
E388]

Exact date of construction not known. History
book suggests 1909; Almanac suggests 1910.

Demolished.

Glenavon # 2

1913

1989

Architect: G.W. Northwood, Winnipeg (R. Hill:
BDAC - 1913)

PAS photo: Accession: 2010-211 - Heritage
Branch Slide Collection — Korvemaker — 9 May
1990

Demolished; replaced with a more modern
Toronto-Dominion Bank;

Montmartre History: p. 378. The 1913
building closed in 1989, when the Glenavon
Branch was absorbed by the Montmartre
office.




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Glidden

c.1917

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Madison History: p. 77 — Glidden was a sub-
branch of the Madison Branch.

Glidden History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838

Gravelbourg

1912-
1913

Gravelbourg History: p. 11 - opened in June
1912

Bank thoroughly renovated in 1948. [PAS: R-
E2713]

Photo at left, top: TD Bank Group Archives:
Photo at left, bottom - local history, p. 12
TD Bank Group Archives Note:

Also received a facelift sometime before
1935; I've sent an image for reference.

¢.1935 - Resided with Insul-Brick by 1935.

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Graytown (aka:
Bemersyde)

c.1921-
1922

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Graytown / Bemersyde History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 838




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Hodgeville

Prel1936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Hodgeville History:

Photo: None at PAS

Kennedy # 1

1909

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Kennedy History:

Photo: history book: p. 138

Kennedy # 2

c.1918

1937

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Kennedy History: p. 51 — opened in 1909;
closed in 1937; p. 45: At some point later,
Frank and Mary White set up a hardware
store in the old bank, and lived upstairs; p.
139: the bank closed in 1939; p. 140: around
1918. . “the new Bank of Toronto”; p. 141:
later “Peter Swan, after buying out the firm of
Dermody & Dermody, moved into the old
Bank of Toronto building with his real estate,
insurance and income tax business.”; p. 143:
when the Bank closed in 1939 town was left
without banking services until the Credit
Union was formed in 1960;

Photo: history book: p. 51

Kipling

1911

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Kipling History:

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 839




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Kyle

Prel1936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Kyle History:

Photo: None at PAS

Lafleche #1

c.1912

Photo left, top PAS: R-A 19, 496

Photos left, lower: Courtesy of TD Bank
Group Archives

The photo to the left shows both the original
(left) and second Bank of Toronto buildings in
the same image, and is dated 1913.
However, the corner siting for the second
bank does not match the older image
location.

Lafleche History: no reference to Bank # 1

TD Bank Group Archives Note:

Opened in 1912 as a sub branch to
Gravelbourg Bank of Toronto. Originally
opened in a building in the old town site,
located half a mile south of the present day
Lafleche.

Lafleche # 2

1913

1986

Architect: G.W. Northwood, Winnipeg (R. Hill:
BDAC - 1913)

PAS photo: Accession: 2010-211 - Heritage
Branch Slide Collection — Korvemaker — 26
Aug. 1981

Lafleche History: p. p. 22, 568 — Bank # 2 built
in 1913; building moved in 1923 to present T-
D Bank.; new T-D Bank # 3 constructed in
1986 — old building presumably demolished.
[PAS: R-E996]

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

TD Bank Group Archives Note:
January 16, 1913 full branch status
1933 became a sub branch to Assiniboia
In 1963 the Branch celebrated its 50th
anniversary along with the town.

1993 - sub branch to Assiniboia




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Langenburg

1906

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Langenburg History:

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 839

Lemberg

1913

c.1914

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Lemberg History: no information

Photo: None at PAS

Loverna

c.1921-
1922

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Loverna History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 839

Madison # 1

1917

Foul nave 0 MaDs0r 1997 T MoMesus

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Madison History: p. 77

Madison # 2

1918

1972

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Madison History: p. 77 — The bank opened in
1917 and closed in 1972, three years after it

became a sub-Branch of Kindersley

Photo: p. 77 local history




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Mazenod

1915

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Mazenod History:

Photo: None at PAS

Meyronne # 1

c.1913-
1914

c.1915°7

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant.

Meyronne History: "The first banking
business was carried on by the Bank of
Toronto in one corner of the Grouix
Hardware store and was later moved to a
building just north of the hotel which was
later used for the Post Office and then as a
Telephone Exchange. The first bank manager
was Mr. Burnie who married shortly after
coming to Meyronne and brought his bride
here to live. Mr. Bill Laurie succeeded him
and lived with his new bride in the living
quarters above the bank. {brick building} just
north of Haddad's store. "

Photo: from Lynn McCaslin, Feb. 9, 2019

Meyronne # 2

c.19157?

1962

Architect: G.W. Northwood, Winnipeg (R. Hill:
BDAC - 1913)

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Meyronne History: p. 11, - bank closed in
1962; and then Credit Union moved into
Meyronne. No photos

Photo: Saskatoon Public Library: PH 89-111-
13; Data Base # 38920 — entrance to bank
— from Margaret Hanna, 3 Feb. 2019




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Montmartre # 1

1910

1913

PAS photo: R-A 2787-3

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
brick building is no longer extant.

This is a brick building, with the Bank of
Toronto apparently renting a portion of it.

Montmartre History: p. 356 — 358. Bank # 1
opened Jan. 10, 1910 in the Simonin Building.
Bank # 2 opened across the street from the
Simonin Building in 1913. This history book
includes extensive detail on the operation of
the Bank of Toronto at both the local and
divisional level. For about half a century, the
local manager and his family lived on the
second floor of the Bank. In the 1960s a
separate manager’s house was erected in the
community.

Montmartre # 2

1913

1978

Architect: G.W. Northwood, Winnipeg (R. Hill:
BDAC - 1913)

Photo at left: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

PAS photo below: Accession: 2010-211 -
Heritage Branch Slide Collection —
Korvemaker — 12 Aug. 1980

o o
] H’I :

Montmartre History: p. 358: Bank # 3 was
erected in 1978; in 1989 it absorbed the
operations of the Glenavon Branch. Itis
unknown what happened to Bank # 2.

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) Bank #
2 is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Mortlach # 1

1913

c.1915

The first Bank of Toronto branch appears to
have operated out of rented quarters in this
business block. It is still extant

Photo by: Frank Korvemaker, 31 July 2015
Top Left Photo: PAS: R-A9386-1 (c.1910)

Bottom Left Photo: undated photo on
plaque affixed to building.

Mortlach History:

Mortlach # 2

c.1915

19

Photo at left, top: Courtesy of TD Bank
Group Archives

The second Bank of Toronto branch in
Mortlach was a stand-alone brick structure,
similar to that at Assiniboia and Vanguard,
but not identical, as it has a central entry and
some apparently terra cotta decorations on
the parapet. Moreover, the brick appears to
be of uniform colour, unlike the mottled
effect of T.P. Moka from Claybank.

This building has been demolished.
PAS photo, left bottom: R-A 18,752-1 (1915)

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 839

Neilburg

Prel936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Neilburg History:

Photo: None at PAS




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Odessa #1

c.1912

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 839

Odessa # 2

1913

¢.1930s

s Comsicn D 1004 — lasee John Womes Co

Odessa History: p. 125 — Started in 1920s;
closed in 1930s.

B/W Photo: p. 124-125 local history; and
Colour photo: May 2013 from Google Street

View

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 839

Pelly # 1

1911

1913

Image

Not Yet

Located

Pelly history: p. 43: Banking started in a
store in 1911; it closed when a stand-alone
bank was erected in 1912-13.

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Photo: None at PAS

Pelly # 2

1912-
1913

Late
1920s

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Pelly history, Vol. 1: p. 15, 43 - A separate
bank was built in 1912, and opened in 1913.
Closed in the late 1920s. In 1952 the building
was acquired by the Bank of Montreal and
served that Bank for a number of years.

P. 38 —Served as White’s Cafe in the 1930s.

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 840




Community

Opened

Closed
by

Photo

Architect / Contractor / Comments

Preeceville # 1

1911

1913

Firs{BaRRIof Toronto

Preeceville history: p. 24 - Bank opened in
1911; then moved into new building in 1913.
Bank # 1 was later used as a private
residence. When it first opened, the Bank
kept its safe outside the building, covered by
a tarpaulin. (This situation also existed at
other banks, such as the Northern Crown
Bank at Lockwood.)

Preeceville # 2

1913

1932 -
burned
down

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Preeceville history: p. 32 - Bank #2 burned in
1932; also p. 48-49

Exterior Photo: Prairie Towns website

Preeceville # 3

c.1932

c.1951 -
sold

Iimage

Not Yet

Located

Preeceville history: p 46 -Bof T# 3 sold in
1951 and moved off site for use as a service
station. P. 49 - Bank # 3 was a single storey
structure.

Photo: None at PAS

Preeceville #4

c.1951

Image

Not Yet

Located

Preeceville history: p 49 —new bank erected
on same site as Bank # 3.

A modern Toronto-Dominion bank has since
replaced Bank # 4.

Photo: None at PAS




Community Opened Closed Photo Architect / Contractor / Comments
by
Quill Lake 1906-07 | c.1909 Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.
Image
Quill Lake History: no information
Not Yet
Photo: None at PAS
Located
Regina # 1 c.1928- c.1932- Regina History:
1929 1933
Henderson’s Directory: 1929-1932 — located
Image at 2123 — 11" Avenue (in the former Bank of
Hamilton)
Not Yet
Located
Regina # 2 c.1932- ¢.1954- Henderson’s Directory: 1933-1954 — located
1933 1955 in McCallum-Hill Building, ground floor, at

NeCnlauom  mii

FIRE L Diwg
NES A RALN

1874 Scarth Street, corner 12" Avenue
Henderson’s Directory: 1955 - moved to 1822
Scarth after merger with Dominion Bank of
Canada to form Toronto-Dominion Bank.
Photo, top: HIP Postcard —c. 1913

Photo, bottom: PAS: Regina Chamber of
Commerce Collection, c.1944. Arrow points

of part of bank name.

Building imploded on Oct. 31, 1982.
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Rosetown

Prel1936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019)
this building is no longer extant, has been
moved, or renovated out of practical
recognition.

Rosetown History:

Photo: None at PAS

Smiley

Prel1936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019)
this building is no longer extant, has been
moved, or renovated out of practical
recognition.

Smiley History:

Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 840

Springside

1913

c.1914

Qeneral Slore and Bank of Toronto, Springside, Sesk,

(34}

Bank on far right of store, behind car

Springside history:, p. 4: “Prior to World War
I, the Bank of Toronto conducted business for
two days of every week through one of their
Yorkton staff.”

P. 34: from 1912 report: “A branch of the
Bank of Toronto has recently been opened
and deals with all the banking interests of the
community.”

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or

renovated out of practical recognition.

Photo: None at PAS

St. Boswells

1919

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

St. Boswells History:

Photo: None at PAS

Stenen# 1

1911

1931

Image

Not Yet

Located

Stenen History: p. 208 — started in Hardware
Store; closed in 1931; reopened in 1948.

Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 840
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Stenen # 2

1948

1966

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives (1948)

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Stenen History: p. 208 — started in Hardware
Store; closed in 1931; reopened in 1948;
moved to new location into the modern T-D
Bank in 1966. Bank # 3 still open 1984

Photo: None at PAS

Sturgis

c.1921-
1922

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Sturgis History:
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 840

Summerberry

1913

c.1914

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Summerberry History: no information
relating to the Bank of Toronto.

Photo: None at PAS

Vanguard #1

1921

19

Image

Not Yet

Located

Vanguard History: p. 30 - The first bank was a
small wooden structure, located across the
street from the later brick bank.

Photo: None at PAS
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Vanguard # 2

C.1922

1937

Photo at left: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives (ca1920)

Colour Photo: Google, Street View, 2014
This bank is identical to the one at Assiniboia;
it is also similar to the wood frame banks at
Chaplin and Woodrow.

Now in use as a business office

Vanguard History: p. 29 & 30 — later used as
RM of Whiska Creek Office

Vibank

1911

Photo at left: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives (ca1910-11)

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Vibank History: no information
Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 841

Welwyn

Prel936

Image

Not Yet

Located

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Welwyn History:

Photo: None at PAS
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Wolseley # 1

1906

1965 -
burned

Wolseley History: p. 9, burned down in 1965;
p. 50 -initially used as a bank; later used as a
grocery store and beauty shop; p. 57 — bank
opened July 20, 1906

Located between two two-storey brick
buildings: A.G. Thompson Hardware and
Magee and Thompson Store.

Photo: Courtesy of TD Bank Group
Archives

Wolseley # 2

1921

present

Still in use as a TD Canada Trust

Wolseley Walking Tour: p. 14 — “the 1921 TD
Canada Trust”

Photo by: Frank Korvemaker, 20 July 2015

Building erected in 1921: TD Bank Group
Archives

Woodrow

1915

c.1917

Based on Google Street view (Jan. 31, 2019) this
building is no longer extant, has been moved, or
renovated out of practical recognition.

Woodrow History: p. 39 — no textual
information; photo only

This bank is identical to that erected at
Chaplin, and similar to the brick banks at
Assiniboia and Vanguard.

Photo: None at PAS

Listed in Wrigley’s 1921-22 Directory, p. 841

Yorkton # 1

1906

1911

Image

Not Yet

Located

Presumably demolished after move into the
new brick bank.

Photo: None at PAS
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Yorkton # 2 1911

Historic Photo: Yorkton Tour, p. 30

Extant — now Alexander’s Men’s Wear —
corner of Broadway & 3 Avenue

Color photo: Frank Korvemaker, 3 Dec. 2015

Yorkton Walking / Driving Tour: p. 30 —
photo and text: Robbed twice: 1931 and
1941

Prepared by:

Frank Korvemaker, M.S.M., S.A.A. (Hon.)
Ret'd Archivist / Construction Historian

59 Compton Road

Regina, Saskatchewan, S4S2Y2

Tel: (306) 586-1405

and

E-Mail: frank@korvemaker.ca

Hon. Corporate Archivist for the Saskatchewan Association of Architects
For information on the Association: http:/saskarchitects.com/
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